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TRANSCRIPTION OF TAPED RECORDING OF:

WITNESS HO. 3 AND WITNESS NO, 1

PREPARED FOR COUNSEL
PROTECTED AND CONFIODESTIAL

REPORTED BY: CARRIE A. CAMPBELL, ROR CRR CSR CCR
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WITHESS NO. 1: I know you're not stupid.

WITNESS NO. 3: And stop -- and you need to
know I'm not stupid and that I dosorve 100 percent of
the truth, and thot moans without having to ask, I
know overy single detail., Okay. No, stop. I neced to
know every single detall without having to ask, and
that is the first stop in foeling 1iko you'ro finally
baing honest with me about overy single thing. That
is the first step to me building anything for us and
tho working on -- and the working on things ond
figuring out what’s next, this way or that way or the
other thing. Like it doosn't «= §C doosn't -~ it
doo3sn't chango anything oxcopt for the pain of knowing
that you've been lying to ma, knowing that I don't
know all the story, but knowing that you didn't want
to work on things allowad me to shut that out and say
1 know -~ I know that I don't know the truth. And 1
havo gotton past that and surrendored to that.

WITNESS NO. 1: So thet's why I'm asking you
would it be easier --

WITNESS NO. 3: Woll =-- no, listen, it would
be casier to know nothing,

WITNESS NO. 1: Okay.

WITNESS NO, 3: If you wantod & divorce and

it was complotely over liko you said. If you want &

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
. nalm«m

~ o o«

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
1?
18
19
20
F4)
22
23
24
25

w o~

® - & A

10
11
12
13
u
15
16

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

WITNESS NO. 3: This might be a long grocery
Tun,

WITHESS NO. 1: So ==

HWITNESS NO, 3: [ need == I need avery
single bit of the truth. You owe mo overy single bit
of the truth bocousa this has been a torturcus evening
and day, and you owo ma, and I am not =~ I'm not going
to ask quostions bocouse you're going to tell no
everything.

WITNESS NO. 1: Okay. My first quostion for
you §3 knowing this and this alone, yes, 1 lied to
you. No, ! didn’t sloep vith him. No, we're not
having an otteit; and I'm not talking to him., Bug,
yes, 1 liod to you. Yes, I‘ve had fcelings and ==

WITNESS NO. 3: I have {inasudible} ==

WITNESS NO. 1: Right. But, no, I need to
know this from you: Would -- knowing how you foecl
right now and how you heve felt, would that make you
vant to work on our relationship knowing that l've
lied to you?

WITNESS NO., 3: I can’t tell you what I'm
going to foel or any of that kind of stuff --

WITNESS NO. 1: 8ut I want to --

WITNEZI8 NO. I: =-- excopt that this i{s what

I know: 1 know that I'm not stupid.
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glimpse of hope at anything else, onything else, then
I'm going to stop talking and you'ze not qoing to
finfsh until I know overy single dotail. Don't make
me a3k a question.

Did you confess t-?

WITNESO NO. 1: No, that would be worse
(inaudiblo} in my wholo ontire life. 1I°'m nover scoing
- again. Ever. I've never falt more (inaudible},
nover folt worse in my life, ever.

WITNESS NO. 3: Naybe you noodod to bocauso
he knows thot you're lying about somothing.

WITNESS NO. 1: It was roally, really owful.
If you know somobody i3 lying about something,
wouldn't you want to offar them a place to talk?

WITNESS NO. 3: I have offered you a safo
place to talk.

WITNESS ¥WO. 1: 1 know you havo, and you'ro
the only porson I feel sofo with, but I don’t want to
hurt you, If we're not going to be together =-- I'm
not having an affair, JE The man is married and he
has a baby.

WITNESS NO. 3: Yosh, I'm avare of
evaerything.

WITNESS NO. 1: I know., 1I'm sute you dug

into everything you can dig into.
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WITNESS NO. 3: No.

WITNESS RO. 1: HNo, you haven't? Look at me
and don't lie to me., First of all, don‘t lic to mo.

Did you look st nmy phone to got -':
number, or did you look at my phone because you were
curious?

WITNESS NO. 3: I looked at my =~ 1 looked
at your pﬁone bocause I saw it on the thing.

WITNESS NO. 1: Okay. Thank you for telling

me that.

WITHESS NO. 3: HMow, I did aoo-'a
numbor.

WITNESS NO. 1: HNo. No.

WITNESS RO. 3: That was a truo story. That
is --

WITNZSS NO. 3: You're justifying a lic with
a true story, you know what I mean.

WITNESS NO. 3: No. No. No. That's what
you'voe dono avery aingle time.

WITNESS NO. 1: Yes, that's true.

WITNESS NO. 3: That's what you'vo dona
every single time.

WITNEBS NO. 1: I will tako 100 porcent ==

WITNESS NO. 3: How, 1 have never lled to

you and said, "I lied to you becsuse,” and glven you o
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make sense of it as I'm apologizing.

WITNESS ®WO. 1: ! am o coward.

WITNESS MO, 3: Ploasc bogin and put it all
on the tabla. It's the only chanco we have. It's the
only chanco. HNo mora half-truths. No more thinga to
make it make sonsec. Just froo yoursoll.

WITNESS NO. 1: 1I'm telling you (inaudible).

WITNESS NO. 3: Freo yoursclf{. Frae
yourself,

WITNESS NO. 1: You have to promise mo
{inaudible).

WITNESS NO. 3: It won't lcave the cor.
That'’s up to you.

WITNESS NO. 1: No, it recally won't.

WITNESS WO. 3: It von't loavo the car.
{Inoudible) .

WITNESS NO. 1: So tho truth is, yes, I'vo
had horrible foalings for four years, B throo
yoars, whetover, constontly suppressing, and 1 do feeol
guilty about that. That's the first truth.

Whother it be the guy who did my boobs, I
thought he was great; the guy in Vegads, he was groat:
clionts, vhatever, and I knov that it's me. So, no, 1
have not actod on anything. I don't flirc with

anybody. There's no acting, but my miad has been
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reason. And avory single time you've -~

WITHESS NO. 1: You just did that.

WITNESS NO. 3: HNo. HNo, I didn't. Every
single timo 1 have liod to you and confessed, 1 have
safid -- I have said, "I am 3o sorry,” and I have
never, nevor tried to dofend it with a “"but™ or “this
is 3 reason™ or ';hls is why it made sense” or “it's
your fault® or any of that. Every single timg «-

WITHESS NO. 1: But none of this is your
faule. 1It's not -~

WITNESS NO. 3: Stop. Every time 1 have
licd to you and confessed, I have said, "There i3 no
excuse. I am sorry.” Thact's (inaudible) why don't
tell me something and :heu‘tell me why bacsuse I've
never faulted you for me wronging or lying to you ==
lying to you.

So I knew somothing is up. 1'= not o
fucking idiot.

WITNESS KO. 1: 1 know,

WITNESS NO. 3: 1 descrve to know, I knew
that 1 was boing lied to. I know that you wero lying
to me and when you ==

WITNZS8 NO. 1: I couldn't go anywhere ==

WITNESS NO. 3: Stop. I understand., I

understand., But I'm not the coward that when I lie, I
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going crazy, and I know it's me. Becsuses I =-- I have
everything in you oxcopt for something, I don't know.
And whenevar that shut off, that's what 1've beon
dealing with, So 1 know that xt's'not thase paople, I
know that, but in knowing that, I can't shut this off
and my brain has boon going insane.

S0, yes, I met Eric & year ago and I
instantly had & big crush on him. It would help it Lf
would look at me.

t tnstantly had a big crush oa him. HNo, I
nover flirted with him, MNever confided in him oxcopt
tor I talked about [l 250 he hclped me with that
and just talkod about life and whatever, He is very
motivating. That's his personality., He's vory
persuasive. Ho never flirted with me other than
complimanting mo 8 couple of times on, "Oh, I really
lixe your heir liko thot,* or vhatever.

Meonwhilo, I did dovelop a big crush, and I
folt insenely guilty about it. I couldn't stop my
brain. I don't kaow about you, but I can't control my
brain, as much as ! would like to. It's the most
aspect of me in that way. Slince I was 8 kid, 1 just
can't stop it. Whatever I don't waat it to thimk, it
does and...

Anyvays, he quit coming in, and then !
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didn't sce him at all for five months. Like 1 wasn‘t
lying sbout that. And then he came in, it was »
Friday, and 1 was so nervous to avon have him come in
becauso I knew that I had those foolings, thoso
unexplalnod feolings of I shouldn't have & crush on
anybody; ['m married; this (3 30 stupid. So then I
had really bad anxiety.

Ho came in. Knowing that I felt bettor
whenover ho came in and I felt more calm and that nade
mo fool bottor, but while I was shampooing his hair
and telling him about my class =-- at firat I thought
it wvas just me, but then 1 roalizod it wasn't. He
vas -~ I wvas in the middle of talking and he was doing
"this™ to my leg. And at first I ignored it becsuse 1
didn't know i{f that was just me, and then I realized
he was doing that and I said, “Eric, you noced" -~
vell, 1 seid: “You nced to stop.”

And ho lookad at mo and ho said: “What2?"

And then I said: “You know what you're
doing. I know what you're doing. You need to stop.”

And ho didn't soy oanything. And then he
came back and sat down in the chalr and I said =-
because there was silence. And 1 said: “Is that why
you didn't come in for (ive months?”

And he said: “Yes.” Or, no, he said:

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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period.

So anyways, ! forgot he had my o-mail. He
sent mo an cwmail, 1 think just to chock to 3see if I
wvas okay, but it said nothing. Thoro was nothing in
the e-mail.

But ho osked me & question, whatover he
askod me. I answered back and said, "Whaa you book
your next appointment, you nood to make sure that you
ask for me because they will tell you I'm bookod until
April whotever.“ And ho said ==~ and ho soid: “That's
great. What's the best number I can reach you at?”

1 did not, I promisc you, [ I svear, 1
did not think that that meant to call mo to roll this
ball. 8o I e-meilad him back and ssid: “Call this
line, They will == if you can't got an appointment,
they will teke your numbor, and I will call you back.
I1f you can't reach me there, this is my cell phone
number."®

What 1 didn’'t know -- ond 1l said ~- and I
was trying to send a mossago through there. I said:
-" o= it wa3 _ birthdey party night. I
said: -’s birthday is tonight. My husband and
my family will be ovar at my houso.™ And that was
just trying to send a message of like, look, 1 get It

now, we know we both have this woird attraction, but I
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"Haybeo."® Becouse I gucess ho was attracted to me.

And this happoned to be after you aond I had
just had thot week of whatever. It happoned to bhe
when | was really in oscapo modo. I guess I roally
wanted an escape.

§o whonever he was gotting ready to leave,
ho said: [ como hcre.” I guess to like talk to
mo about whatever just happenad or whatever, and I
said: *"No. Lot's go to tho front.” And then he came
over and by me and I saild: “Eric, wo're both
married.”

He said: "I knov. I know."

I chis cen't loave the cac.

WITNESS NO. 3: It won't.

WITNESS NO. 2: So then we valked to the
front. I said "byc." That was ict.

He came by later and dropped off his book,
his new book, and just sasid “enjoy."” and that was it,
And thoa he sont me an o-mail and that ia how he got
my phone number. That's the truth. He sent me an
e-mail and just said: " -- chet he had oy
o-mail for exactly the reason why I told you ho had ay
nusber, but it was actually my o-mail from like a year
ago. He was doing some sort of book thing and asked

tor my e-nmail. And then he just never e~mailed ma,

HAKﬂ@lDRESgTHNBOIECHNOUNW
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know 100 percent his attraction is he has a wife with
2 baby. He's exactly in the boat you vere in, similar
bost, I'm sure. I'm ouro his wifa is -- whatever.

So he actually callaed me. I didn't know
that. Didn't talk to him, nothing, throughout the
wvhole woek, nothing. The only roason why I know that
he had called me was bacause whenever he called me
Saturday night, I noticed thot tho aumber was » DC
nusber and got scarod knowing that you would look and
roalize that that samo number had called me thet
aight.

So, enyways, I vant throughout the wvhole
week and nothing. And I just Xept trying to process
my thoughts, and I folt like ! was going ccazy and
chat's when I couldn't sleep because 1 knev evarything
1 vas focling was wrong. 1 doan't know why I can't
control it. It's fucking horrible.

So on Satuzday, I did the wrong thimg. It
was mg who o-malled him and said: "My friend i3
having troublos with hor thoughts, Can you please
call me about that® or somothing. So thot's the
roason why he called me that anight. And we talked
about my friend, and cssentially I was juat looking
for "you'tre 30 motivating on everything, please holp

me just turn off my thoughts bocausa this is horrible.

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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It's driving me insane.”

And he %a8id: "I might have & solution, but
1 will have to get back to you on it. And I'm sorry
that you foel that vay, I know how that feols,” and
just roundabout, There wasn't any sort of doep
talking bocauso wo're talking sbout my friond.

WITNESS RO. 3: This is the 14th?

WITNESBS NO. 1: So then ho said: *“1
think == I have a solution. I can seoc you noxt
wookend.® So that was this past woekend.

WITNESS NO, 3: So nothing happoned on the

l4th?

WITNESS NO. 1: No, nothing happened on the
14th.

NITNESS NO. 3: But there wero two phone
calls.

WITNESG RO. 1: The second phone coll vas
him asking {f ! would come outsida to moet him.

WITNESS KO. 3: And?

WITNESS NO. 1: I came outside to moot him.

WITNESBS NO. 3: You told me (inaudible).,

WITNESS NO. 1: 1 didn't <= but I didn't
touch him. Nothing., 1 just == that was him saylng:
"1 think I have a solution. I know that you're in 8

bad spot. I'm really sorry.” Whatever. 1§ know this

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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1 knew ! had so many wrong thoughts in my mind that I
just couldn't fiqure out,

WITNESS NO. 3: What did you do?

WITNESS WO. 1: I don't think you really
want to know., It's horribla.

WITNESS NO, 3: Just toll me.

WITNESS ¥O. 1: I don't think you want to
know,

WITHESS NO. 3: Tell me tho details and the
teuth.

WITNESS NO. 1: {(Insudible).

WITNESS RO. 3: (Inaudiblo) ctell me the
teuth, The truth. Oaly the truth.

WITHESS NO. 1: So on Saturday morning
before my first client, I did go to his house.

WITHESS NO. 3: For the f(irst time?

WITHESS NO, 1: For the first time. Ever.
Like I said, nothing, period, had ever happoned or
token placo until this snowball. This fucking tornado
just happoned. I know I bzrought it on.

1 showod up and I said: "I'm only hore to
talk.”

And he satd:i "1 know."

1 said: "I just want to tell you I fool

liko you‘ro alvays hope because I don't know your

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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whole thing is vrong, [l so (inaudible) I dom't
know what to do.

And thon he said: “Well, I want you to como
ovar next weokond.*

And I said: "I can't. I con‘t do that.®

And he said: ™I want you to come over.”

So then I said: “No, I can't.”

And thee ho said: “Well, at leoast call mo
if you can't.”

And on Friday I called him from wvork and
said: “1'm going to home. It's —'u
birthday. I cannot come over.”

And ho 3said: “HWell, I understand.”

And I said: *I would like to discuss or to
try to get sll of these thoughts away from me. Will
you just meot me for coffec for something 3o that way
we can just talk.”

And he said: ®No, I can’t -- I can't be
soen with you. This is wroeng.”

And 1 said; "I know."

So he salid: “Juat =-- please just coma to my
house. "

WITNESS NO. 3: Keep going.

WITNESS RO. 1: So that's the rzeason vhy I

was so torn talking to - birthday night because

uawnmannzngnnaatmnnunncv
www harthondrepurtiag com
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relationship.” Ho doesn't talk about his
celationship, at all. He didn't talk about himssll at
all, so ! don't aven know.

But I said:s "I juot had a feeling that you
wouldn't bo attzacted to me 1f you didn't have a vife
with a baby. I'm just trying to procoss why I'm
fooling this way, and I hate it. I really hate it.”

And then ho == basically had been
fantaslizing about me tried to live out that fantasy.
He just coaxod mo, kept talking to me gently and
touching me, whatever he could do to still have that
fantasy play out. And I did it.

WITNEZSS NO. JI: Did what?

WITNESS NO, 1: We're getting divorced,
|

WITNESS RO. 3: It's up to you zight now.
Tell me the truth. Set yoursolf free, please, and
tell me tho truth.

WITNESS NO. 1: 1 was 30 confusad with
emotion. {Inaudible} I can't even belicve it becauso
it's not roally in my character. I dom't even fucking
know. I'm so confused.

WITHESS HO. 3: Teall ma tho detalls, plaase.

WITNESS Q. 1: He said: "1'll make you

fecl botter. ['ll maka you fael good. Come

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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downatairs, I want to show you how to do a proper
pullup.”™ And ] knew that he was being soxval, and I
still let him, And he usod somo sort of tape, I don't
know what it was, and taped my hands to theae rings
and then put a blindfold oa me.

HWITHEAS NO. 3: Koop going.

WITNEZSS HO. 1: And said: "If you're going
to do propor pullups, you ncod to know how to drink,”
and I guess put water in his mouth and tried to pour
it in mineo and it scared mo., And I spit bocauvse I
didn't vant to kiss him. I mecan, I'm so --
{inaudible) I thought ~- I thought {(insudiblel.

He just kept touching me over my clothes and
just kept touching me. And then undid my clothes. I
just didn't say anything ot all. 1 didn't == | vas
just completely numb. 1 didn't cven know. [ feel
like I don't even know. I was just numb. 1 just
stood there and dida't fucking know. I was so == he
wvas sort of mossing with mo with his hands.

WITNESS NO. 3: 1Insido?

WITNESS MO, 1: Inaide, yos.

WITNESS NO. 3: And?

WITNESS %O0. 1: 1 mean, that was (inaudible)
and he stepped back, and 1 saw a flash through the

blindfold, and he said: “You're never going to

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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doesn*t feol right. 1 told you I was only here to

talk.”

WITNESS NO. 3: What clse?

WITHNESS NO. 1: And then 1 left.

WITHESS NO. 3: 1Is that every detail? Don't
lia.

WITNESS NO. 1: No, it's not every doteil.

1 loft, went to work in a really fucked up atate of
mind. I felt fucking horrible. (Inaudible) I left ay
fucking koys at hias place and so I had to go back and
got the fucking kaoys after work,

WITHESS WO, 3: And?

WITNESS NO. 1t And I showed up, said: “I'm
30 sorry for what happened corlier.”

"I'm just obsessed over you, and 1 fantasize
about you: §t's wrong and in real life, but I need to
not do thaot. 1 know. 1 love my wife, and I'm really
sorry. And we should not ¢ver talk again, and I hope
that you got cverything figured out.®

WITNESS NO. 3: And?

WITNESS RO. 1: I said: “Well, I'm
leaving.™

Re sald: *Just atay for a little while
longer, please.”

And I aaid: “No, ! really have to go."

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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mention my name, othorwise thore will be pictures of
me |sic) everywhere,”

HITNESS NO, 3: Keop going.

WITHNESS NO. 1: HNo said: “"You're not going
to mention my name, sre you?"” 1 didn't say anything.
1 didn't realize vhat ~= I don't know what the fuck
I'm doing. And then he askoed mo again. And I jusc
ssid: "No."

WITNESS KO. 3: 0id he (inaudible).

WITNESS XO. 1: Woll, my panta were down.

WITNE3SS KO. 3: Koop going, ploase.

WITNESS NO. 1: And thon ho tried kissing my
stomach and tried to kis» me down thore but didn’t
quite got thorae bocause I flippod out and I said:
"You neced to stop. I don't want this. I don't want
this., I don't wont this.”

And he instantly stood up and freaked out
and took off the blindfold and undid my hands and
sald: "I'm roally sorry. Oh, my God, [N 1'm so
sorry. I thought == I want to be -~ I want to make
you feol bottor.”

And then I was like: “This doesn't make me
fecl good at all. I°'°nm so pissed off. 1 don't know
anything about you. I'm so lost. I'm so vulnecable

right nov., 1I°'m in & reoally fucked up place. It

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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"Ploase just stay.”

And then he hald mo for a long time and then
made me fcel botter, just kopt kind of touching me
and...

WITNESS NO. 3: And?

WITHESS NO. 1: T just -- §t vas like, I
don't knov, 45 minutes of me baing thore, me leaving,
and thon him going: “You know, are you suro you
roally want to go? I'm just nover going to soe you
after this and” =~

WITNESS NO. 3: And?

WITNESS NO. 1: And thet was it. It wes
juat ==

WITNESS NO. 3: You never touched hia?

WITNESS RO. 1: HNo. He kept touching me.

WITNESS NO. 3: He touchod you {inaudible)?

WITNESS NO. 1: I told you he touched mo
seven times. He didn‘t get me undressed, but he just
kopt kind of messing with mo.

WITNESS NO. 3: ({Insudible). 1It's really
fucked up, Did he turn you on?

WITNESS RO. 1: Yeoh, ond then didn't, did
both. I felt every emotlon. That's tho raason why
1'm 20 tormentod,

WITNESE NO. 3: So tho only contact
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tinandible}?

WITNESS RO. 1: And touching ma, touching me
all ovor, touching my boobs or my -- I let him. 1I'm
100 percont wvrong.

WITNESS NO. 3: How about kissing?

WITNESS NO. 1: Not really. I don't know,
I don't think ! really ever kissed him, He kapt
trying to kiss me.

WITNESS NO. 3: Did you (inaudible)?

WITHRESS RO, 1: 8o, ! was turnod on in the
beginning bocause I made this roally long and maybe
his putting into all these fdolings and just so much
built=up foelings. [ moan, it*s not like we had
talked about shit. We had not not talked about shit.

WITNESS NO. 3: This is only one day, on

Saturday?

WITNESS NO. 3: Yooh.

WITNESS NO. 3: Do I know avery detall about
this?

WITHNESS KO. 1: Yes.

WITNESS WO, 3: For tha roat of my life?

WITNESS RO. 1: Yes. (Inoudiblel Oh, yes.

WITHESS NO. 3: No other poople that you
know?

WITNESS HO., 1: HNo other people.

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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erasod it." And my mouth fucking (inavdiblel.

WITNESS RO, 3: 1I'm sure you'ro not the
first. ! neod to knov that there's not one ouncoe of a
detail that you'rec lying to me?

WITNESS Ro. 1: " No.

WITNESS NO. 3: You naver hod sex?

WITNESS NO. 1: No.

WNITNESS NO. 3: Aro you aver going to sac
him again?

WITNESS WO. 13 There's & chance, yes.

WITNESS NO. 3: Did you ever touch him?

WITNESS NO. 1: No. (Inaudible).

WITNESS RO. 3: I don't want to you to lio
(inaudible). Where ato you now?

WITNESS NO. 1: I don't knowv if we can make
ft.

WITHESS NO. 3: Whore are you ==~

WITNESS NO. 1: You're & great dad.

WITNESS NO. 3: Are you oasking for
forgiveness, or arc you saying this is what happencd?

WITNESS NO. 1: Oh, 1 definitely want
forgivenecas.

WITNESS NO. 3: Just to make it cleoar to you
chat the grass is not gzooner on the other drive.

HWITNESS NO. 1: I wanted to tell youv., 1I've
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WITNESS NO, 3: Will you aver seo
tinaudible)?

WITNESS NO. 13 I don't know. 1 can't say
no becauso he may come in and got his hair cut. ¢
don't know. I don't wvant to not ever see him again.

WITNESS NO, 3: Why not?

WITNESS NO, 1: Because.

WITNESS NO. 3: Bocause you love him?

WITNESS NO. 1: Mo, I don't love him. It
takes a lot moro to love somebody. I have sc many
mixed emotions about something (insudible) I also care
for --

WITNESS NO. 3: You've been half-raped and
blackmailed.

WITNESS NO. 1: Yes.

WITNESS WNO. 3: And you're not going to tell
anybody about that? Why? Because [inaudible)?

NITNESS NO. 1: Whon I came back, 1 said to
him: "I'm very, vory, very pissed off st you. I'm
grossed ovt. I'm 30 pissed off.”

Ho soid: “I know."

"You took a picture.”

He sasd: " it's just becavsc !
fantasized about you, I fantasized about all these

things, and you could ruin my life. And == but 1
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been fucked up. Like, I don't know. 1°ve been
depressing {sSc) 30 many thoughts 1 thought that --
chere's this veird torment of -- 1 nevaer felt that
boforc.

WITNZSS NO. 3: If thoro L3 a chance in holl
for us oz (inaudiblo)? To able to say to go somovhoro
else (inavdible) but of course (insudible) but if
there i3 a chanco in hell for us, and 1 mean evon way
dowa the road, you nood to show some sort of real
ramorse and edult ability to put yourself in better
sitvacions.

WNITNESS NO. 1: {Inoudiblel.

WITNESS KO, 3: I don't knov about that.

WITNESS KO. 1: You obsassed over the
fucking (inaudible) things.

WITNESS NO. 31 Just because I'm not an
idiot and I knew somoone ond I knev somothing was
going on. 1 know tho person from the first timo you
talkaed about him., I neod you to stop talking about
him and thon hit me or ho's going to look at vs, and
then two colls, ond then licd te about this and thon I
lied to == asked you to tell me the truth and not
fucking (inoudible) and things add up and I let it go
and I did not ({naudiblo). Have you told me the

antire truth?
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WITNESS RO. 1: Would you rather I not tell
you?

WITNESS NO. 3: For the sake of our
rolationship and any sort of future, I absolutely noed
to know every fucking truth., That's it, Obsossing
and all that, that's on ma. But the fucking truth s

on you.

-

WITNESS NO. 1: I can't qvor go back to

WITNESS NO. 3: You noed it.

WITNESS NO, 1: No. No (inaudible).

WITNESS NO. 3: You (inauvdible).

WITNESS NO. 1: Are you kidding me?

WITNEYS NO. 3: You don't have the option of
telling (inaudible}.

WITNESS NO. 1: ({Inaudiblel.

WITNESS NO. 3: Do you want s divorce?

WITHESS NO. 1: I don't know what I want,

WITNEGS NO,. 3: Have you spokon to him

since?
WITNESS NO. 1: VNo.
WITNESS NO. 3: There are no othor truths --
WITNESS NO. 1;: Ho.
WITNESS WO. 3: E-mails? Phone calls?
Texts?

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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WITNESS NO. 3: You naad to have aay
(inoudible) from here?

WITNESS NO. 2: ({(Inaudible) I'm so ashomed
of myself. I'm so ashamed. I focl like the only way
to be roslly faithful to you is to love you with my
whole hesrt because this is so unshaking. I moan, it
is shaking, I don't want to be like this. I want to
be strong and -~

WITHESS NO, 3: You didn’t kiss him once
({inaudible) whan you came over?

WITNESS NO. 1:; WNo, I didn'c,

WITNESS NO. 3: And you'vo nover been to his
home other than those two times that one day?

WITNESS RO. 1: WNo. No, I swoar on that
baby.

HWITHESS RO, 3: Nevor walked with him around
the neighborhood?

WITNESS NO. 1: No. Hover. JEER ploase, I
just told you the hardest thing ever. [ swoar, no.

WITHESS RO. 3: I know eoverything?

WITNESS NO. 1: You know cvarything.

WITNESS BO. 3: And I've heard that several
timaes cthis week, and I really want (inaudible).

HWITNESS NO. 3: I mean, do you 3till love me

now? Bocause this is a pretty fucked up thing.
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WITNESS RO0. 1: Ho, nothing. Zero percent.

WITHESS ¥o. 3: I3 there anyone else
finaudible) ?

WITNESS RO. 1: No. No. Rothing. I just
folt surprised at all. I juast think -- do you have
those thoughts?

WITHESS NO, 3: 1've had those thoughts in
tho past, yeah, I told you that.

HWITNESS NO. 1: No, you haven't,

WITNESS NO. 3: Yos, I have, but nothing
like that, This is juat a line that I know, and I
have not fuckod with that 1line. Tho closost thing
that ever happenod to mo was 1 was blacked out and
someone kissed me and I stopped it. And, ves, I was »
coward for not telling you, and then I told you. And
what 1 told you was --

WITRESS NO. 1: You warc llke ==

WITNESS K¥O. 3: -~ not your fault, not your
fault. Not me boing confuasod or any of that because
of you, 1 was confused and I fucked up, and that was
the closest.

WITNESS NO. 1: But 1'a telling you, IR 1
don't blame you for Vegas. I don't blamo you for
this, but 1 do think that thero's something wrong with

the way that I ==
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WITNESS KO. 3: I love you, 1! hate you
right now. 1 hate you for what you've doane to
yoursolf. (Inoudible). Look at me. I love you.
Right now I just don't (insudiblo) knowing that you
licd to me this whole time. I still vry. [N vou
1iod to ma.

WITNESS NO. 1; 1I'm 30 sorry. Like, I even
don’t know, lE I vas just wanting so bad to get
rid of all of my thoughts. I thought that would do
ic.

WITNESS NO. 3: A woman who was raped and
blackmailed 50 Shades of Groy style. How fucking
poatic.

And you never como? How long does it
(inaudible)?

WITHESS BO. 1: Whot do you mean? Like
30 minutes in the morning and thaon I don't Xnow how
long == that®s how long I was there. 45 minutes
{inaudible).

WITNZSS NO. 3: Tho whole time when you wont
over to get your keys, was still touching you and
fingering you and all this ashic?

WITNESS NO. 1: Juat coaxing and, you
know ==

WITNESS NO. 3: If you want to ==

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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WITNESS NO. 1: It was just tormonting.

WITNESS RO. 3: To avoid to let that happen.

WITHESS WO. 1: Yeah.

WITNESS KO. 3: How did you feal
{inaudible)? Was he masturbating?

WITNESS NO. 1: He touched himself.

WITNESS NO. 3: You never put your hand on
him?

WITHESS NO. 1: No., It was him trying to
mako mo foel good and, I don't know, whatever,
(inaudibla}.

WITNESB NO. 3: Do you think that you couvld
ovaer hoal and be able to have sox with mo again?

WITNESS NO. 1: I don't know, 1 thought
about you., ! know you would naver (inaudiblo) -= you
wvouldn‘t chedt on me like that.

WITNESS NO. 3: 1I'm golng to be honest with
you and say 1 knew you lied and I kncw something
horriblo had happenod. But whan you sald it was ovor,
1 triod to lot go and I took a stop in my life to
not {insvdible) and to not stress, to lot you have
whatever it was cthat you had to lie about, 1 head
hoped that (inaudible) and it wouldn't bo a
tolationship that showed me a lot, but I know that I

didn't vant to deal with it because (t will only huzrt
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me 30 I'm not obsessing and loving you and (insudible)
loving and sink into myself.

WITNESS NO. 2: Without being with me, it's
so hered., 1 can't,

WITNESS NO. 3: (Inaudible).

WITNESS NO. 1: I wantod to bocauso I just
wanted to stop faealing the way that I foel. I hate
it, 1 foel so guilty a lot of timos.

WITNESS NO. 3: The grass i3 always groonor.

WITNESS NO. 1: But it's not that, 1 don't
have those thoughts. It's not the thoughts of "this
would be better; this would be better.” It's not
that. It's more just like --

WITNESS RO. 3: Did ho ask for you to have
sex with him?

WITNESS NO, 1: Ho.

WITNESS NO. 3: Did ask him?

WITNESS NO. 1: No.

WITNESS NO, 3: Did you gulide him?

WITNESS NO. 1: No.

WITNESS NO. 3: 0id you tell him what to do?

WITNESS NO. 1: No. I don't ==

WITNESS NO. 3: Did you over want to have
sox vhen you saw his face?

WITNESS NO. 1: No. No. The only time I
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me beocause I was lotting you go.

WITNESS NO. 3: I know.

WITNESS RO. 3: So last night was the wvorst
night ever and theo night before hearing you quastion.

WITNRESS NO. 1: I'm sorrxy.

WITNEZSS NO. 3: And whon you started
questioning, I didn't want to hear it bescause ! had
alroady atartod my healing, And you cannot suck me
back into this loveloss place where I loved 3o much
and I'm not loved or at least loved for. And ['m not
saying thaot you haven't done a lot and work at us, but
aftor all that vork and all that I've been to you
rocently to havo this happen on the day after .
bicthday, fuckod up.

WITNESS NO. 1: I know.

WITHESS RO, 3: It sucks me back into this
tornsdo, but ! ncod to know is this & real tornado
bacause then 1 have a decision, do I get back into the
atorm and rido it out, or do I just let the storm
happen and holp you resettle? That is a question for
you to fucking anawar. Sorry for the pressure, but
this is on you. I om not going to emotionally put
myself back into this spot. Not going to (imoudiblo)
just a pretty fucking (inaudible) all week because I

was letting go, changing and opening s new chapter for
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was really tusznod on was in the very beginning and
once ho (inauvdible).

WITHESS NO. 3: You're just geing to let
this mon got away with this?

WITNESS NO. 1: I don't know how to describe
it.

WITNEGS NO. 31 Ho took such advantage of
you. You need to tell.

WNITHESS NO. 1: No. I don‘t waat you to ==

WITNESS NO. 3: If thore's -- a time to
learn from this fucking lesson with -. then you
need to toll. Risk it. Risk the embarrassment.

WITNESS NO. 1: 1It's not like that, though.

WITNESS RO. 3: It's not like what? This
mothorfucker is running for senstor.

WITHESS NO. 1: Whot elso can help us?

WITNESS NO. 3: I know that he comos off os
this mother fucking manly hero and it's all about
restllionce and honor and all that.

WITNESS NO, 1: 1 knew you would cbaess.
You're obsessod.

WITHESS NO. 3t No. No. Ho. This vas
when == bofore that I know you wera lying to mo.

WITHEBS NO. 3: Bullshit., Don't liec to mo.

WITNEBS NO. 3: I pronmise.
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WITNESS NO. 1: You haven't looked today or
yestorday?

WITNESS %O0. 3: Fuck no. [ENEE on -
birthday, you told mo it was over, and I let it sl}
go. 1 told you yesterday that devastating cry was
about the kids bocauso | know that there was nothing I
could do to control it. So not one fucking cunce of
energy from me has beon spont on learning about you or
catching you or anything. I know == I knew and I know
that you liod to meo, but I knowv that nothing would
come of it §f I dug except for pain for mo., I dida't
want to knov, Every single person told me, “nono of
this adds uvp. Humans aro mothematical: deducing she's
choating on you,” and I said -~

WITNESS NO. 1: But I!'m not ==

WITNEDS NO. 3: Stop. And I said, "I don't
even core anymore. I don't want to know because it
only hurts me.” That's the fucking {(inaudible).
That's the truth. Anything 1 knew from bofore was
vhon § was psnicking a week bofore you did this
knowing you had liod to me sbout this man. And I'll
have you know, I con dostroy hils coreer in a half an
hour.

WITHESS NO. 1: 1If you do that, thea I would

hate you.
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WITNESS NO. 1: Well, fine, then he's like
Bill Clinton or whatever, but it docan't mean he con't
be a groat governor. It doesn't mean he's not
brilliant or vhen I -- vhen I go back thare
and (inaudible} & lot botter, that's the hard things,
porsuasive and ==

WITNESS NO. 3: Are you in love with this
guy?

WITRESS NO. 1: No, I'm in love with the
idea of == of him, you know; not him.

WITNESS NO. 3: You don't think you're
falling in love with this quy?

WITNEZSS NO. 1: No, 1 think that that takes
an open hoart, you know, like, both parties. 1°'vae
noever loved the woy 1 love you., All of your worrlies
are my vorries oxcaopt -

WITNESS KO. 3: You know (inaudible).

WITNESS BO. 1: 1 faol like Ln doing this
I'm afrxald that there's no way we could bo togather
with you (insudible) and mo being okay because the
ching thet 1 hsve hated more than anything in our
tolatlonship s the rescarching everything, I hate it.
T hate it more than I hate anything and --

WITNESS KO. 3: And overy time I've beon

right.
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WITNESS NO., 3: Ho took a picture of my wife
naked as blackmail.

WITNESS NO, 1: I would hate you.

WITNESS NO. 3: He took a picture of my wifo
naked as blackmail. Thore i3 no worso porson. S0 yovu
tell him -- actually, you tell him nothing. 1 don°t
wont you in contact with this person ever again.

If == if you come to the conclusion that you want to
tzy (inaudible) but you cannot {inaudible) would have.
Take a cuo from our 16-year=old.

WITHESS KO, 1: There's a big difforenco,
.l -

WITNESS XO. J: This man is a2 part of
cuining our family and he's get oway with {t,

WITNESS N0, 1: It's my fault, though. It
really is, like --

WITNESS KO. 3: Yeoh, somes of it is, but you
didn't take his pants off, you didn't ask him to go to
your house, you didn't --

WITNESS NO. 1: He's at foult., I know ho i3,

WITNESS NO. 3: Ho's the ono tunning (or
senatoz, not you. OI governor, not you. You cennot
lot this man charade his 1ife a3 this groat,
upstanding, everything, look at me, I've got it all

cogether, and it's slways bullshit.
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WITNESS 8O, 1: Hot aevery time, JEE} Fuck
that, You look into shit all the time. No, not avery
time, [l Tvo timos in fucking 12 years. One time
really ls the only time I've over really cheatod.

WITNESS NO. 3: I was right that you vould
1i0 to me. 1 was right that you would cheat on ma.

WITNESS NO. 1: You havaen't lied to mo? You
haven't looked through shit? You haven‘t -- [
don‘t you dare try to protend like you're this perfoct
man.

WITNESS BO. 3: 1'm not.

WITNESS KO, 1: I don't search through your
shit, 30 I don't know. For all I know you've had many
conversstions with women online, You've had many
conversations with women through phone.

Have you?

WITNESS KO, 3: Yes, tons. No.

WITNESS NO. 1: Have you?

WITNESS NO. 3: No. I don't fucking do
anything. I support you in evorything. I como homo,
I'm with the kida.

WITNESS NO. 1: In all this time you
haveon't?

wiTNess ¥o. 31 No. QR you can

fucking == all my minutes arc accounted for.
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WITNESY NO. 1: But you have all my minutes
accounted for,

WITNESS NO. 3: No, I don't. Going to work,
] don't know whan you don't have clienta. I don't get
to go to work and have spaces. Spaces --

WITNESS Wo. 3: Bullshic, IR You have
all kinds of time. I don’'t know whan you do things.
I would never in a million yaaza look into that.

WITHNESS NO., 3: Okay.

WITNESS NO. 1: 1 can't be with you if
you're going to scarch into cverything., It happenad
with the thought in my mind of --

WITNESS NO. 3: Right, justifying your
({naudiblo} bohavior.

WITNESS RO. 1: No, no, it's not at all,

WITNESS NO. 3: HWell, listen, some psople
sre just different, and if I'm a little svspicious on
that kind of stuff, maybo that‘'s somewhat on you and
YOUur gonorosity or your commitmont =--

WITNESS WO, 1: ({Inaudible).

WITNESS NO, 3: Okay. Okay. Othor poople
are, too. So maybo that's s part of your commitment
ot generoslity to go out of your fucking buffor zena
and help somebody and say, "No, babe, I love you,

Like, 1 promisc wo're® = you know, blah-blah. But
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for o moment on the 20th when you were supposed to be
out with your fricnds?

WITNESS NO, 1: I was out vith my [riends.
They thought I was talking to you. I lied to them,

WITNESS NO. 3: Oh, the circles wo veava.

withess %o, 1: [ I don't kaow who I om,

WITNESS NO. 3: That's aice.

WITNESS NO. 1: I'm so scared.

WITNESS NO. 3: HWhat do you want from me?

WITNEOS NO, 1: You {imsudible) so strong.

WITNEOS NO, 3: Don't tell me that you'ze
nover golng to see - sgain.

WITNESS NO. 1: Well, that was the worst.

WITNESS NO. 3: HNo, bocause I finally
{inaudible).

WITNESS NO., 3: No. Fuck no. 1I‘ve had such
a == are you fucking kidding me?

WITNESS NO. J: What did ho say? Becauso
obviously ho picked up on somothing that I dida‘t.

HITHESS MO. 1: It was horrible.

WITNEGS NO. 3: What did ho say? What did
ho say that wos not the truth?

WITNEGS NO, 1l: It was how he acted to me,
S :t was hov he acted. So horrible.

WITNEGS NO, 3: And you {insudible} I'm
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instoad you got angry and you do understand what that
looks like, and you do undoratand what it looks like
whan I ond up boing right.

werness 8o, 1: [ 1) of thoso other
times, all of those othor times, those millions of
times that you wvore wzong, that's why 1‘m angry.

WITNESS NO. 3: This hos been a different
wockand and voek for mo, and the last thing I want to
do is bo suckod back into your tornado that you were
or that I was, okay. And this last weok has been
fucking liberating and beautiful for me.

WITNEBS NO. 1: ['m sorry for everything,

WITNESS NO. 3: Yosh, me, too. [HNER
thoro's somothing I nocd to know. I need to know
you're not going to hurt yourself. I don't wvant make
this to bocome ovorwhelming and you do something rash.

WITHEGS NO. 1: Seriously?

WITNEGS NO., 3: Seriously.

WITNESS 8O, 1: [ did. I moan, to ma doing
that, it vas voird., It wos like I wanted that, I
wanted to hurt myaolf,

WITNESS NO, 3: Could you have sex with mo
aftecr this? This was last weekoend,

WITHESS NO. 1: No. Just ~--

WITNESS NO. 3: And yov just talked to him

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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back.

witNess No. 1: No, Il I'm telling you,
it vas horridble. When you left the room he said:
*Something's chongod in you this last three to four
months, so tell mo vhat the fuck is going on.”

WITNESS KO. 3: And what did you say?

WITNESS NO. 3: I said: “"Three or four
montha?”

And ho said: “Yeah., You're obviously
chesting on him."

WITHESS NO. 3: He was righe.

WITNEBO NO. 1: How wish thot I =--
{inavdible) see, to bo able to tell him I have never
tolt 20 3carod in my life. It was 3o horrible.

WITNESS NO. 3: You've beon calm the vhole
time and you hovon‘t told him the truth so --

WITHESS NO. 1: No, bullshic, [N
Whonovor ho said --

WITHNESS RO, 3: Whot did you say in
response? Oid you say no? Did you lie to him?

WITNEES NO. 1: Yeoh, ! just said no. 1
couldn’t say anything, Ml 1 just sat there. It
vd3s 30 uncomfortable. And he ssid: "Woll, my wife
cheated on mo, and I know what it looks lixe, [

Don't fuck around with mo. 1I°'ve baon doing this for
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d5 years, you know, and you know what, you're glving
up. No vondor why you're sad, [l yov’'ro giving up
on your family. You are stopping out on your family."

WITNESS NO. J: You don't fecl like that was
tzue?

WITNESS NO. 3: You don't fucking tolk to
somebody like that, though, when you're & counaolor.
You reslly think that that's the beat way to be &
counselor?

WITNESS NO. 3: I'm not s counseloc. Moybo
it is. I don‘'t knov. I do know that I trust hin
boyond what 1 undorstand.

WITNESS NO. 1: I don't. It was horrible.

WITNESS NO., 3: Well, that's an issue.
i{lnaudible) knows the truth.

WITHESS RO, 3: I can't do ict, IR

WITNESS NO. 3: 1 would like to you think
about that.

Who olse knows?

WITNESS NO. 1: - and - are the
only two people I told.

WITNESS NO. 3: You told thom the dotails?

WITNESS NO. 1: Yeah.

WITNESS NO. 3: Ané what did thoy say?

WITNESS NO. 1: Well, they didn't say

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
{314 737-0008
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somebody elss. I love the ides of us so much, I love
it, but 1 also don't want to continuc to fight all
those foelings. And I know the second that you fool
dopressed, it sparks that in ma, and it's not your
tault, but it doos do that. And if that's something
that I can work on with a aeparata counsclor, ! wvould
absolutely do that. I want to do that anyways. But
there's no way in hell I'm soelng -. 1 nover folt
more sick to my stomach.

WITHNESS NO. 3: I don’t liko the fact thot
you're in tho position that in you're right now and
you're moking rules, saying novors. I doa't like
that. And that's one of tha things I don't like about
this whole situation is that you make those decisions,
you may think they'sze so solid and you stick with them
bocause you'rc fucking stubbora liko that. You're o
tule maker.

WITNESS RO. 1: I am?

WITNESS NO, 3: I'm learning to be vory,
very €loxible. _, 1've dono ol
these things, so you can dig the things that you say
oz things that you'vc done and thinking you know it
all and defining overything.

WITNESS NO. 1: I don't. HWe should probadly
let == - go into tho grocery store. Park up

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
1314} 727-0003
wwwlautfordrrpectizgcom
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anything. Obviously it‘'s out of character for m¢c to
do anything and that thoy didn't know what they would
do if thoy were mo and...

WITNESS RO. 3: They don't Xnow what they
wvould do, 8s in toll oz {inaudible)?

WITNESS RO, 3: Because I said it's killing
moe. I wanted to toll you so bad that first night,
that's why I made - sloep vith mo. It was just
a yoar ago and I couldn't pzocess the whole -~ it's so
bizarre, I don't know. I had so many mind gamos that
day. Liko this scared, like, dislika, hate, pissed
off, coro -- you know, ! mean, jost every cmotion I
folt 30 1 just wantod to do something. I folt
horrible. But ==

WITNESS WO. 3: You got it out of your
system?

WITNESS NO. 1: I don't know, That's my
hope.

WITNEGS NO., 3: But you don't know?

WITHNESS NO. 1: Tho only reason why I say I
don't know s bocsuse I'm so jumblod without slecping,
and I know that the socond that I'm around you and the
kids, ] vant == I vant -- I want to do vhatover I can
to make us work, I caa‘t envision a life without you

at oll, ond I con't envision a life with you with

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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closar, 1It's S5:%6.

WITNESS NO. 3: (Inaudible) in your entize
1ife?

WITNESO RO. 1: Ny ontira life, yeos.

WITNESO NO. 3: I3 his number still under
- RN fclder?

WITHESS NO. 1: VYes, I haven't touchod it.

WITNESS NO. 3: I don't kaow what to say
right now except there will be zero contact if thote's
a chenco. I don't even kaow what you're asking for.
Are you asking for & chance? Because quit fucking
with me.

WITNESS NO, 1: I know. I know. 1 know. I
know. I know,.

WITREGS NO. 3: This Is worse than the
cheating. This ls going to take some procesaing fot
me in a new way. I do love you. Every goal and
aspiration that I had with you is atill the samo. 1
don't know what that path looks 1iXe snymore thaon I
did yesterday, although now I sec half of it. All
tight, I soe it half as clearly.

WITNESS NO. 1: Do you think you would be
able to not worry every single time my phone rings --

WITNEZSS NO, 31 Now -- now you know what a

slippery slope is and can do.

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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WITNESS NO. 1: Yeah. I know what a tormade
is, actually.

WITNRSS NO, 3: [ want to say and things if
1 feal 1ike I've thought it through and it's nocessary
for me to say somothing like, you know, you'll neover
3poak or seo this person again, even §f ic°s in the
salon bricfly, but I can't say that right now bocause
1 noed to process this. But you noed to quit fucking
with me, and you noed to tell me what it is that you
want or what it is that you'ro willing to try because
you aro at ground 2exo with truast right now. And
that's ovorything to ms becouse I have finally trusted
myself again.

1 teel bad for you, and I want to holp you,
but 1 really need my distance for a minute in many
ways bocsuse you can't help ma.

WITNESS WO. 1: Okay.

WITNESS KO. 3: The ball is in your court as
to what you want to do, what you want to ask ma to do.
tou foel froo. You noed to feol opon. You nood to
facl like I'm trustworthy. So if you'ro having o
thought, you need to tell me; you need to ask me. If
it's something ! coan do for you, I'll think about it,
and I'1) do ft. If it's somethiang I can't, I'll think

about it, and 1°'l} let me know why or when.

HARTFORD REPORTING & TECHNOLOGY
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NOTARIAL CERTIFICATE

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) 88
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS )

I, CARRIE A. CAMPBELL, RDR, CRR, NO CCR, IL C3IR,
and Notary Public in and for the State of Missouri,
duly commissioned, qualifiad and authorized, do harady
coertify that [ ropostod the following tape-zecordod
conversations in shorthand and transcribed into
typewriting, and that the foregoing pages corroctly
sot forth the conversation of the parties, to tho bost
of my ability, and is in all rospocts a full, true,
corroct and complete transceipt of the conversations.

1 furcther certify that I am not of counsel or
attorney for any of the partieas in tho conversation,
not rolated to nor imterested in any of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my

neme and affixed my Notarfal Seal on this 8th day of
January, A.D., 2018,

My Commission cxpires February 2, 2018,

Carzioc A. Compbell, RDR CRR CSR CCR

Cortiflod Shorthand Ropottor
Certified Reoltimo Reporter
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Right now I'm not going to bounce this ball.
You're =-- it's in your hands bacause you're fucking me
up and toking mo into your fucked up world, and I'm
batter off without that bascause I was doing well. !
know I'm o stronger man than even I knov that I am,
and I know I'm a strongor man than you've ever thought
1 was.

So vwe'll soe. What it i5, we'll soe, I
don't know, bocausec I still don't know what you're
asking., So whon you have a question, you let mo know.
1'm going to walk it off. Got groceries.

wirnzas no. 1: [ (inaudiblel.

WITNESS NO. 3: This is exactly the time for
to you do this. I'm sorry, but you got to deal with
however it iz I hove to deal with this right now. Let
me process.

WITNESS NO. 1: (Inaudible).

WITNESS NO. 3: Go homes and get your pursc
and como back. 1'll be home with the kids. I'm
sorry. Look at me. I love you. ({Inaudiblo) fucking
hato you. Our love is mora stronger than (inoudible),
but thore's your honesty and thero's mine. You
{inaudible) == you roally do. Our love i3 so much

stronger than that. {(Inaudible}.

HARTFORDNBP&ETB@O&1ECHNOLOGY
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chrls canpershelll <canpershell@yahoo.com.sg>
X sheena.greitens@gmail.com
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There
is
another
woman
in your
home
right
now,
I'm
assumi
ng
you're
out of
town
again,
If you
want to
know
more
contact
me
here.
I''m
SOiTy.
This
isn't
fake or
spam.
They
are at
the
Marvla
rd
addres
S

Chris

Sheena Chestnut Greitens

canpershell@yahoo.com.sa




Thanks very much for writing: I'mttraveliing from June 24 to-July 5 with limited access to
email: | look forward to responding to your message when { retum.

Sheena Chestnut Greitens

Assistant Professor, University of Missouri
Non-Resident Senior Fellow, Brookings Institution
http://www.brookings.edu/experts/greitenss:
http://politicalsclence.missouri.edu/people/greitens.shtmi

To; Sheena Greitens
. Today was not the first time he has had her in your home.

From: Sheena Chestnut Greitens.<sheena.greltens@gmail.com>;

To: <canpershell@yahoo.com.sg>; -
Subject: Out of the office Jurie 24-July 5 Re Another woman with eric

Sent: Fri, Jul 3, 2015 2:4:00PM >

Thanks very much for writing. I'm travelling from June 24 to July 5 with
limited access to email. | look forward to responding to your message
when | return.

—-en q




Sheena Chestnut Greitens

Assistant Professor, University of Missouri
Non-Resident Senior Fellow, Brookings Institution -« - -«.. -
http://www.brookings.edu/expertsigreitsnss - ‘
http://politicalscience.missouri.edu/people/greitens.shtml -
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. Sent (1366 messages).
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: 10/23/15 '

. Appointments

ch stronger word -
a8, When | say lova, Eric, . o
“-0;"3:5_,-"; g g4 | am asking you to please consider all who are involved and_ "'
; the circumstances around us, | need you 1o not book at the
, salen anymore. This isn't {air to me,.nor anyone close to us, . _
o Please respect me and my wisaes. | need to move-forward-'
w8, When | say love... 5 in my life as | know you are doing as well. T'éke"caré, G

wh sironger word

- Sent from my iPhone ' SR e e s

{16

F i . s o G
0745 1
552 To:

ave his from my junk. : ; ;
oot o T e T CAppeintments
Yhursgay,'Sg; vehat-a...

ADMASN 5L %
B adigin. “Eflg, , ' " My
| &m asking you to Please’consider all who are involVed. and -
the circumstances around us. | need you'to.not bo; K:at the™
‘$alon anyiare. This e fair lo me, nor anyone close t6:(
Plaase respeat me 5. lneed {o]

: : e and myﬁ.‘.yishg's_._l-.nced‘flo.moi)e f
Wm\y you are doing as.w Il.:Take cara;
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DowD BENNETT LLP

Edward L. Dowd Direct Dials 314,889.7301 edowd@dowdbennett.com
February 22,2018
By Email

Todd Richardson, Speaker of the House
Elijah Haahr, Speaker Pro Tem

Rob Vescovo, Majority Leader
Missouri House of Representatives

201 West Capitol Avenure

Jefferson City, Missouri 65101
todd.richardson@house.mo.gov
elijah.hashr@house.mo.gov
rob.vescovo@house.mo.gov

Re: House Committee Investigation of Governor Greitens .

Dear Messrs. Richardson, Hashr, and Vescovo:

We welcome reviewing this issuc with the independent, bipartisan committee of the
Missouri House of Representatives

For 40 years as an attorney for the public and for private litigants, I have never seen
anything like this. The charges are unfounded and baseless. The Governor is absolutely innocent,
Not only is he presumed innocent — he is innocent. The Circuit Attorney's investigation is
completely unusual,

This statute has never been used like this in Missouri history. In unprecedented fashion,
the Circuit Attorney circumvented the local police force and hired her own investigators. We
attempted to meet with the Circuit Attomey and make the Govermnor available to discuss the
issues. They refused. They proceeded to file an indictment that has no facts.

We will work with the committee. We will be deposing witnesses and will be happy to
share information with you with the Court’s permission.

Sincerely,

o 7 D

Edward L. Dowd

Partner
Dowd Bennett LLP
7733 FORSYTH BOULEVARD, SUITE 1800 - ST, LOUIS, MISSOURI 63105 EXHIBIT
314.889.7300 - FAX 314,863.2111 - WWW.DOWDBENNETT.COM § 22
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Ryan Clearwater

From: Ryan Clearwater

Sent; Wednesday, February 28, 2018 5:59 PM

To: ‘edowd@dowdbennett.com'

Subject: RFD to EG

Attachments: 2018.02.28 - RFD to EG.pdf; 2018.02.28 - RFD to EG 2.pdf
Good Evening:

Attached are two documents from Representative Jay Barnes for you. Please let me know If you have any questions.

Sincerely,

—

. P
’ . /_/ K -
o7 - .
S LPRTNG

-

RYAN M. CLEARWATER

Offices of Representatives Jay Barnes & Paul Curtman
Missouri House of Representatives

201 West Capitol Avenue

Jefferson City, MO 65101

573-751-2412

$73-751-3776

41(

: :
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CAPITOL OFFICE COMMITTEES
Sraee Capital Chainman:
200 West Capited Avenue Rules — Administrative (versight
Jeffeoan City, MC) 65101-6806 Memben
Idementary and Sceondary liducation
Telex (573) 7512412 (irime Prevention and Pablic Sofery
Jaint Intedim Comminee on Sane
ey Limplovee Wages
HeMail: Juint Comminee an Adminkamrive
Joy-Ramner@hunse.mo.guv Rulex
MISSOURI HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
JAY BARNES
State Represenmtive
District 60
February 28, 2018
Edward L. Dowd, Jr.
Dowd Bennett
Via email:
edowd @dowdbennett.com
Dear Counsel:

It was good to speak with you briefly this moning, Thank you for reaching out to discuss some
key facts that you deem relevant. As I stated in the press conference announcing formation of
this committee, our task is to gather facts in a fair, thorough, and timely manner. To that end, it
would be helpful to start with the evidence that the St. Louis Circuit Atlomney turmned over to your
team in response to your discovery requests. Please find attached a formal request for said
documents.

At this point in time, the precise schedule of the committee has not been determined. However,
we expect to take sworn testimony from relevant witnesses within the next three weeks. We are
happy to work with you on the timing of that schedule so that it does not conflict with other
obligations in the Circuit Attomney’s case,

Sincerely,

I B—

Rep. Jay Barnes

Page 3 of 25
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HOUSE SPECIAL INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT
REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS AND THINGS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT pursuant to § 21.400, RSMo, the House Special
Investigative Committee on Oversight requests that Governor Eric Greitens and his counsel
produce for inspection and copying the documents described below. Production shall be made by
3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, March 6 at the office of Chairman Jay Barnes, Room 306 of the State
Capitol Building.

DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS

A As used herein, the term “document” means the original or drafts of any kind of
written or graphic matter, however produced or reproduced, of any kind or description, whether
sent or received or neither, and all copies thereof which are different in any way from the
original (whether by interlineation, receipt stamp, notation, indication of copies sent or recejved
or otherwise), regardless of whether designated “confidential,” “secret,” “privileged,” or
otherwise and, including without limitation, any writing, paper, account ledger, invoice,
statement, bill, agreement, contract, memorandum, letter, object, evaluation, report, record, study
note, diary, working paper, minute books, index sheet, summary, recording (including audio or
video), or memorandum of telephone or other conversetion, or of interviews, or of conferences,
however produced or reproduced, whether computer or electronically retained or generated to
which the defendant has or has had possession, custedy or control of, has or has had access to, or
has knowledge of. “Document"” also includes, but is not limited to, any electronically stored dara
or paper document. This includes, but is not limited to, electronically stored data on magnefic or
optical storage media as an “active” file or files (readily readable by one or more computer
applications or forensics software); any electronic files saved as a backup; any “deleted” but
recoverable clectronic files on said media; any electronic file fragments (files that have been
deleted and partially overwritien with new data); and slack (data fragments stored randomly from
random access memory [RAM] on a hard drive during the normal operation of a computer [file
slack and or RAM sleck] or residual data left on the hard drive after new data has overwritten
some but not all of previously stored data), However, in no case does “document” require
disclosure of materials protected by attorney-client privilege or attorney work product.

B. “You,” “Your,” and “Yourself” refers to the person to whom these Requests
are directed and any of his, her or its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, consuitants,
agents or attorneys.

C. If your response to any request herein is that the responsive documents are not in
your possession, custody, or control, then please identify who has possession, custody, or contro)
of the documents and where they are located.

D.  With respect to any document called for by these requests which is withheld

pursuant to any claim of privilege other than attomey-client or attorney work product privilege,
please list the following information for each such document:

(1)  The title and general subject matter of the document;

Page 1 of 2
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(2)  The date of the document;
(3)  The identity of the author of the document;
(4)  The nature of and basis for the claim of privilege; and

(5)  The identity of all persons who saw the contents of the document.

E. When the term “person” is used, it means a natural person, firm, partnership,
corporation, proprietorship, business trust, joint venture, association or any other organization or
definable entity,

F. When the term “identify” refers to a person, it means to state the full name,
present or last known address, and employment of each such person,

G.  Whenever your answers to document requests refer to other sources of
information, please identify such source with sufficient detail 1o enable Plaintiff to subpoena any
persons who are the source of such information and/or to obtain by a subpoena diices tecum any
document which serves as a source of information.

H. To the extent required by law, these document requests are to be deemed
continuing, and if you or your attorneys, agents, representatives or other responsible persons
discover additional information as to matters inquired of in such document requests between the
time the answers are made and the date of trial on the merits in this case, supplemental answers
shall be served, fully setting forth such newly discovered information.

L Space is included for answers to these document requests upon the original as
required by rule. If additional space is required, separate attachments may be used and properly

designated,
REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION

Request #1:  All documents disclosed to Eric Greitens or his counsel by the office of
the Circuit Attorney of the City of St. Louis in connection with the
criminal indictment filed on or about February 22, 2018, including but not
limited to all documents referenced in the cover letter sent by the Circuit
Attomey that was publicized on or about February 27, 2018.

Request #2:  All documents in your possession, custody, or control other than the
documents provided as a response to Request #1 relating to the criminal
indictment filed on or about February 22, 2018.

Request #3:  All documents consisting of or relating to communications between you
and [ including but not limited to emails or text messages.

Request #4:  All agreements or contracts between -nnd you or any person or entity
acting on your behalf,

Page 2 of 2
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February 27, 2018

Mr. Jack Garvey

M. James Martin

773 Forsyth Blvd, Suite 1900

St. Louts, Missouti 63105

Re: State v, Greitens

Cause Number: 1622-CR00642-01

Mr, Jack Garvey and James Martin:

My records reflect that you are n possession of the following discovcry'
. Grand Jury Indictnient filed on February 22, 2018 L

Please {ind encloszd the following discovery:
L. Request for Discovery (2 pages);
2. Tremscripts of taped recordings ¢ ofP S.and K.S (47 pagu).
3, Email questions and answers for KMOV interview, of P.S.:
4. Email of K.S. to P.§ dated March 24, 2015 (lpago)
5. Email of K.S to P.§¢ daledeh 2652015 (1page)
6. Email of K.S to P.S dated July:§;2015; (2 pages)
7. E.G’s statements to the public (1'DVD);. e,
8. Taped statsments of K.g (1'DVDY;
9. Picture of ndmin contact ot‘ B.G ([ page); -

10, Pleture of X.8 (ipage); =/ ...
11, Picture of email from E.G. 8. dated August 25, 20!5 (lpage),
 datid October 20, 2015 (lpage),

12, Picture of cmaxlofK.S to
13. E.G"s Facebook posi (3 pages);

I have not received any discovery from you to date. Please forward any discovery you mgy
have. If you have any questions or would like to discuss the caso, please call me at (314) 589

6289, 1look forward to speaking with you.

Sincerely,

13/ Robert Steelo

First Assislunt Cnrcult Attorney A
MO Bar# .

cc: Court File

'
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Jay Barnes

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dear Jay, Sounds good. Ed

Ed Dowd
314.330.5160 (mobile)

edowd@dowdbennett.com

£d Dowd <edowd@dowdbennett.com>
Monday, March 05, 2018 2:36 PM

Jay Barnes

Re; Discovery Materials

This email is from the law firm of Dowd Bennett LLP and may be privileged.

On Mar 5, 2018, at 2:16 PM, Jay Barnes <Jay.Barnes@house.mo.gov> wrote:

Dear Ed:

Thank you for the quick phone call today. Consistent with our phone call from this afternoon, we expect
to hear from you by noon tomorrow (Tuesday, March 6) regarding the status of our request for
documents. We will decide how to proceed next after having that conversation.

Sincerely,
Jay Barnes

Representative Jay Barnes

60th District

Missouri State Capltol, Room 306A

573-751-2412

Jay.Barnes@house.mo.gov
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Jay Barnes

From: Jay Barmmes

Sent: Thursday, March 22, 2018 4:19 PM

To: edowd@dowdbennett.com

Attachments: 2018.03.22 - First Interrogatories to Gov. Greitens via Dowd.pdf
Dear Ed:

Please find attached requests for sworn answers to written interrogatories directed. These questions are more
appropriate via interrogatory because they involve details that your client may have difficulty recalling on-the-
spot in an interview with the committee. Answers to these interrogatories are due next Thursday. Please also be
aware that the committee has the authority and will, in fact, protect any personally-identifiable device or
account information provided to the committee against public disclosure.

I am looking forward to our meeting tomorrow. As we discussed, Vice Chair Don Phillips will be present, as
well as staff attorneys Alex Curchin and Alix Hallen. In advance of our meeting, I request that you be prepared
to provide a time at which your client will be made available for sworn testimony before the committee, We are
happy to accommodate your and your client’s schedule at any time between Wednesday, March 28 to Thursday,
April 5.

Your client would be provided with the same courtesies and procedures as those for other witnesses who have
appeared before the committee, At your request, we would schedule the hearing at the Jefferson City Police
Department for privacy and security. In addition, counsel are permitted to sit at the witness table, but not
permitted to testify.

If your client plans to invoke his constitutional right not to testify, I kindly request that you inform the
committee of this fact via written response by Monday of next week so that we can fill out our schedule over
the next few weeks and fulfill our responsibilities in a timely fashion.

Sincerely,

Jay Barnes

— e ¢ er e B 44 em s ATt b mmees 8 = b evmeaA v MAPY.S Eme s o S04 amascve
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TO: Eric Greitens, via hand-delivery and email to Edward Dowd at edowd@dowdbennett.com

BEFORE THE HOUSE SPECIAL INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT

REQUEST FOR SWORN ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES

You are hereby requested to provide answers, swom under oath, to the following interrogatories

and to provide the same by $:00 p.m, Thursday, March 29, 2018 to the office of Chairman Jay
Bames, Room 306-B, State Capitol Building, Jefferson City, Missouri.

As used hereln, “you” or “your” or any derivative of the same refers to Eric Greilens.

“Communications device” refers to any phone (including, but not limited to smart-phones),

tablet, laptop, desktop, or Intemet-connected device capable of storing, receiving, or sending any

transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature.

1. How many communications devices have you used since January 1, 2015 for any
purpose, personal or professional? For each such communications device, answer the

following:
a.
b.

me a0

kl

ANSWER:

Whether you still have possession or access to that device;

The phone number associated with that device;

The unique device identifier associated with that device;

The IP addresses for any such devices;

For phones, whether the phone is or was a pay-by-month or “bumer” phone;
Whether you used any methad to back-up or store the contents of
communications, photographs, or other documents sent, received, or created
on that device;

The service providers you used for purposes of sending or receiving
communications with the device;

The service providers you used to back up or store the contents of
communications, photographs, or other documents sent, received, or created
on that device;

Whether you have an account or access to an account where data sent by,
received by, or generated by the communications device is backed-up or
accessible on the Intemnet;

Whether you have a server or other computer equipment to which data from
the communications device is backed-up;

Whether you currently have or have ever had an iCloud account with Apple
relating to the use of Apple devices, such as an iPhone, iPad, or Mac
computer; and if so, the dates such accounts were opened and closed and
identifying information for your iCloud account, including your usemame;

Page1of2
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2. How many email accounts have you used since January 1, 2015 for any purpose, personel
or professional? For each such account, identify the eddress used and the dates for which
you used the account.

ANSWER:

3. Do you have an Apple ID account? Is so, how many and what email addresses are
associated with those accounts?

ANSWER:

VERIFICATIO!

STATE OF MISSOURI

o’ ot
é

COUNTY of

1, Eric Greitens hereby state under oath that [ have read the allegations of the foregoing
Interrogatories and the same are true to the best of my information and belief.

By

‘Eric Greitens
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of , 2018,
Notary Public
My Commission expires:
Page 20f2
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Jay Barnes

From: Jay Bamnes

Sent: Friday, March 23, 2018 1:17 PM
To: edowd@dowdbennett.com
Subject: Follow-up on This Morning
Dear Ed:

It was great to meet with you this morning. As we discussed, your client has the opportunity to testify before the
committee under the same courtesies and circumstances as other witnesses who have testified. I would note that
your client has been aware of this opportunity since the beginning of the investigation ~ starting with the first
communication we had on February 28 and following with several subsequent conversations.

While it is, of course, true that he has a right not to testify in the criminal trial, it is also true that he has the right
to testify so if he so chooses. As for our investigation, while he does not have a constitutional right to testify
before the committee at this point, we are treating it as if he does.

Now, nearly a month after the first notice, the committee needs a firm answer from your client as to whether he
will testify. So that we may plan accordingly, we kindly request a written answer on whether he will exercise or
waive this right by Monday at 5:00 p.m. If your client chooses not to participate in the process, that is his
choice. However, regardless of his choice, the committee will issue its report on time.

We also discussed the possibility of reviewing discovery from the criminal case pending in the City of St.
Louis. We are happy to review evidence from that case and are supportive of a motion by either party to make
an exception to the current order against disclosure to third parties. However, in the event any such evidence is
provided, we would insist on having the complete set of evidence. In other words, we will not accept cherry-
picked evidence from either the Circuit Attorney’s office or your client.

Sincerely,

Jay Barnes

—— - o RaAmaa e, (oot —— @ A o aemran
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March 26, 2018

Chairman Jay Barnes

Vice Chairman Donald Phillips
Representative Kevin Austin
Representative Shawn Rhoads
Representative Jeanie Lauer
Representative Gina Mitten
Representative Tommie Pierson, Jr.

Dear Reps. Barnes, Phillips, Austin, Rhoads, Lauer, Mitten and Pierson:

First and foremost, we wish to reiterate what we told the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee
when we met with them last week: Governor Greitens will cooperate fully with the work of this
committee,

Rep. Barnes has made two demands of the Governor: 1) That we let him know by 5:00 p.m. today
whether the Governor will testify and 2) that if the Governor agrees to testify, he do so within two weeks.

On the first request, our answer is: yes, the Governor is willing to provide testimony to the committee, as
well as all necessary documentation, discovery, depositions, and other key information. Rep, Bames®
second request, however, is unreasonable, This Committee was formed to investigate allegations mede by
St. Louis City Circuit Attorney Kim Gardner, Trial in that case is 7 weeks away, and the court just teday
ordered that the case proceed to a trial by jury. Moreover, the court’s restrictions on what information
can and cannot be released make it impossible for the Governor to provide what the Committee needs to
complete its work.' That includes discovery information from the Circuit Attorney, transcripts of
depositions of key witnesses, and other critical information that is not currently available to the
Committee, by court order, That information will be available only after the criminal trial is concluded,

The Committee, the House, and the people of Missouri deserve a full and complete report. But due to no
fault of the Committee or the Governor, it is impossible for the Committee to accomplish that goal by
April 9. The timing of the release of any documents or reports from this Committee Is all the more
important in light of a jury trial. Anything published by thls Committee will no doubt influence the
Jjury pool and the public about this case, and thus it is vital that the Committee’s work reflect the
full facts. That is why we respectfully request that the members of the Committee grant yourselves a brief
extension of a few weeks so that you may complete a thorough and comprehensive investigation,

Moreover, as you all know, the Governor is unable to testify prior to the criminal proceedings, as doing so
would violate his right to a fair trial. He would be under no such restriction once the trial concludes. In
other words, even though the Governor can and will provide information to the Committee over the next
two weeks not subject to the court’s orders, critical information that the Committee needs to complete its
work will not legally be available by the Committee’s original April 9 deadline,

For example, while the Committee has heard from some witnesses, there are others who have and will
testify at depositions, which by court order the Committee will not have access to before the original

! As you may be aware, Mr. Dowd hed spoken with the Chairman weeks ago and offered to provide the Committee
with discovery in the criminal case, but at the request of the Circuit Attomey, the judge ordered that no third parties,
including this Committee, may obtain discovery materials from the case, including information derived from the
Circuit Attorney’s investigation and exculpatory evidence (evidence showing the Governor is innocent).
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April 9 deadline. The Committee deserves to see those accounts, meny of which show that accusations
made against the Governor are false. The Committee also deserves to see all of the discovery material
assembled by the Circuit Attorney herself, some of which shows that the Governor is innocent. By court
order, this information may not be shared with the Committee until after the trial,

In order to get that key information, the Committee ought to give ltself a brief extension, through just
after the criminal trial has concluded, The Circuit Court trial will begin on May 14 and is expected to last
only two or three days, A brief extension of five weeks past the Committee’s deadline will give the
Committee all the information and evidence it cannot currently obtain,

Although the Governor asked the Court for a trial date of April 3—in part so thet the trial would be
completed before the Committee’s report was due—the Court set trial for shortly affer the Committee’s
current due date. Fortunately, the Resolution authorizing the Committee and its work allows it to extend
its deadline and permits such an extension by simple majority vote of the Committee. In a matter of such
weight and seriousness, surely all of us—and the people of Missouri—will agree that completing a full,
thorough, and accurate report is more important than sticking to an arbitrary schedule, particularly when
the extension need only be for a few weeks.

The Committee Chairman has stated that the “committee’s job is to investigate the underlying facts and
report back to the General Assembly.” A brief extension will enable the Committee to do just that:
conduct a thorough, complete, fair investigation of a/f the underlying facts, On the other hand, absent a
brief extension, the Committee:

~ Will not have the benefit of the discovery in the pending case, which includes information that
exonerates Governor Greitens.

~ Will not have the benefit of the depositions taken in the pending case, which include cross-
examinations and testimony of witnesses, some who have testified before the committee and
others who have not.

~ Will not have the benefit of testimony and cvidence elicited at trial.
= Will not have the testimony of the Governor.

- Will disseminate incomplete, false and misleading information that will cause damage to entirely
innocent people, some of whom are familles and children.

= Will cause pretrial publicity that interferes with the fairness and due process of the Circuit
Court trial and unduly influences the jury pool.

- Will cause disruption of the legislative session and confusion among legislators who will be
Justifiably perplexed as to what, if any, action they should take based on an incomplete and
inaccurate report.

Based on all of the above, we see no compelling reason not to provide a brief extension of this
Committee’s work. Over 36 months have passed since the incidents being investigated by this Committee
allegedly took place. Surely the committee can spare six additional weeks to get a full and complete
accounting of what actually occurred. The matters being investigated by the Committee are not urgent,
nor, for that matter, are they matters directly related to the continued functioning of state government,
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During the course of this investigation, the Governor has continued to govern, just as he will during the
five additional weeks the committee ought to take to complete its work.

Please take an additional five weeks to do a complete and thorough review of al/ of the underlying facts
and the evidence as shown at triel in order to write a full, fair, complete, and truthful report. We strongly -
believe that a rushed, incomplete, inaccurate report will not serve the Committee, the House, or the pecple
of Missouri well. Speed is not of the essence here; accuracy is.

We respectfully request the Committee approve this brief extension to provide the public and your fellow
lawmakers with a complete and accurate report that preserves the constitutional rights of every person
involved and does not unduly interfere with the Governor's right to a fair trial by an untainted jury. There
is no compelling reason not to allow yourselves more time to do this work right, and we respectfully
submit that doing so would be in the interest of the Committee, the House of Representatives, and the
people of Missouri,

Respectfully submitted,
{s/ Edward L. Dowd {s/ Lucinda Luetkemeyer
Edward L. Dowd Lucinda Luetkemeyer
Dowd Bennett, LLP Counsel to the Governor
7733 Forsyth Blvd., Ste 1900 . Office of the Governor of Missouri
St. Louis, MO 63105 lucinda.luetkemeyer@govemor.mo.gov
(314) 889-7301
edowd@dowdbennett.com
{s/ Ross Garber
Ross Garber (of counsel)
Shipman & Goodwin LLP
1875 K Street, N.W,
Washington, D.C. 20006
(202) 469-7798
rgarber@goodwin.com

Counsel on behalf of Eric Greitens Counsel on behalf of the Office of the Governor of Missouri

cc: Speaker Todd Richardson
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Jay Barnes

From: Ed Dowd <edowd@dowdbennett.com>

Sent: Monday, April 09, 2018 10:13 AM

To: Jay Barnes; Don Phillips; Kevin Austin; Shawn Rhoads; Jeanie Lauer; Gina Mitten; Tommie
Piersonjr; Todd Richardson

Attachments: 2018.,04.08 Defendant's Motlon to Compel Immediate Production of all Exculpatory
Information.pdf; 2018,04.09 Letter to Chairman and Committee sending 4.8.18 Motion
to Compel.pdf

For your information and review. Thank you for your consideration.

Ed

o i a oy e v 8] o s e ey i 4rs atd

Pagse 15 of 25

O 6 118 2o an e AP s et oot £ 80t 456 81 S S B a0 S PR At e e, P 0 B P OO @ s, 9P S



Edward L. Dowd, Jr. Direct Dial: (314) 889.7301 Emall: ¢dowd@dowdhenncti.com
April 9, 2019

Chairman Jay Barnes

jay.bames@house.ino.gov

Dear Chairman Bames:
Attached is a Motion to Compel we filed on behalf of Mr. Greitens on April 8, 2018.

As you will see, there are several important developments revealed in the deposition of the
alleged victim,

1. The alleged victim admitted some of her memory of certain evidence may have been
from dreams instead of reality, and she had earlier informed the Circuit Attorney's Office of her
dream or visions;

2, The alleged victim described that her contact with Eric was consensual and that she was a
very willing participant; and

3. The Circuit Attomey s Office videotaped an interview of the alleged victim but is now
claiming that the video is lost or the equipment malfunctioned. These are matters that were not
disclosed to the defense until her deposition on Friday, April 6.

We would appreciate it if you would review this important information. Thank you for your
assistance with this matter.

Sincerely yours,
S Z (D /,‘

Edward L. Dowd, Jr.

ELD:djs

cc:  Vice Chairman Don Phillips don.phillips@hous .80V
Representative Kevin Austin kevin.austi .1M0.80V
Representative Shawn Rhoads sh thoa QUSE.MNO.go

Representative Jeanie Lauer ieanie.lauer@bouse.mo.gov
Representative Gina Mitten gina.mitten@house.mo.goy
Representative Tommie Pierson, Jr. tommie.piersonjrn@house.mo.gov
Speaker Todd Richardson todd.richardson@house.mo.gov
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE
TWENTY-SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

CITY OF ST. LOUIS
STATE OF MISSOURI
STATE OF MISSOURI, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) Cause No, 1822-CR00642
v. )
)
ERIC GREITENS, )
)
Defendant, )

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO COMPEL IMMEDIATE
PRODUCTION OF ALL EXCULPATORY INFORMATION

Defendant Eric Greitens requests a court order compelling the Circuit Attorney to
immediately produce all exculpatory information in her possession. Recent deposition testimony
has confirmed that information that supports the Defendant's innocence has been withheld from
him - as well as from the Grand Jury and the House Committee reviewing this matter.

Background on Recent Events

Counsel for the Defendant questioned K.S. under oath on Friday, April 6, 2018. This
testimony provided information establishing that the Circuit Attorney lacks evidence to prove the
offense. However, it also established that the Circuit Attorney has withheld evidence from the
defense. Similarly, the House Committee looking into these matters has been deprived of
essential information. Of note, the sworn testimony established that K.S. never saw a
photograph, has no evidence of transmission of any image, and that any assertion by K.S. that
she saw a phone on the day in question was based on a dream or vision. In addition, the Circuit

Attorney videotaped an interview of witness K.S. but now claims that this tape (which Defendant
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believes would further provide proof of his innocence) does not exist due to a claimed
malfunction. The loss or destruction of such key evidence bears scrutiny.

A, Undisclosed Dreams or Visions

The prosecution admits it does not have any photograph that forms the basis of the
charges. Nor has the prosecution provided any evidence that K.S. ever saw such a photograph.
Nor has evidence of any transmission been provided. Nor does K.S. recall seeing a telephone or
camera. When K.S. was asked by defense counsel, “Did you ever see him in possession of a
camera or phone?” she answered: “Not to my knowledge. 1 didn't see him with it.” The
question was then asked: “And as you sit here now, you cannot state under oath that you ever
saw him in possession of a camera — with a camera or a phone?” and K.S. replied, “Correct.”
And then, “And you can't say you saw it on his person, you can’t say you saw him put it down in
the kitchen, take it from the kitchen, or put it down anywhere in the basement. Those are all
correct statements, are they not?” K.S. answered, “Yes. I cannot say.”

Apparently recognizing the difficulty this testimony presented for the charges, the
Assistant Circuit Attorney later asked K.S. “did you see what you believed to be a phone?” K.S.
answered: *... | haven't talked about it because I don’t know if it’s because I’m remembering
it through a dream or I - 1'm not sure, but yes, I feel like I saw it after that happened, but I
haven't spoken about it because of that.” She later re-confirmed, however, that she could not
testify under oath that she saw a phone.

A witness who is "remembering it through a dream” is not a witness upon which a
prosecution can be based. K.S. testified that she had informed the Circuit Attorney that her
recollections may well be from a dream or vision, but the Circuit Attorney did not turn that

information over to the defendant. It was not until after hours of testimony that K.S. revealed
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she was having a dream or vision about what happened. Nor did K.S. inform the Missouri House
Committee looking into these matters of this key fact. These dreams and visions may well
extend to multiple other aspects of K.S.'s recollection of these three-year-old events. For the
Circuit Attorney to have been told by K.S. about these dreams and visions and to have not
disclosed it to the defense is a violation of Brady.

B. Witness K.S. Provides Other Undisclosed Evidence That is Exculpatory

There are also differences between the testimony K.S. gave in her deposition versus what
she said to the Grand Jury. On key points, K.S. admitted she had pot disclosed to the Grand Jury
or the House Committee important facts. K.S. also acknowledged that the recordings made by
her ex-husband contained what she describes as lies. These differences make it critically
important that the defense obtain accurate information about what K.S. has said on different
dates about the events in question.

By way of example, apparently a theory of the Circuit Attorney is that K.S. would not
consent to creation of images involving partial nudity. But in an event never previously
disclosed to the Grand Jury or House Committee, K.S. now admits that in June of 2015, she
transmitted images via Facetime of herself to the Defendant while she was in a state of partial
nudity. In & similar manner, K.S. acknowledged that for months after the alleged “invasion of
privacy,” K.S. continued to see the defendant willingly. One of those events took place that very
same afternoon on March 21, 2015, and another just days later. Other events took place weeks
and months later, again suggesting that K.S. did not view the Defendant as having violated her
privacy rights back in March. K.S. acknowledged that she never viewed anything that happened

as a criminal matter, agreeing that the “last thing on [her] mind" even in January of 2018 was
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potential criminal prosecution. Moreover, key information tending to prove innocence was not
provided to the Grand Jury or House Committee.

The facts disclosed in the deposition establish that this was a months-long relationship
and that K.S. was a co-equal participant; any current testimony to the contrary appears to be the
product of dreams or visions that make it difficult to remember what happened, the passage of
time after the defendant decided to terminate the relationship, or the continuous interviews on
this subject. The defense therefore requests a report of any statement by K.S. to the government
that would tend to be exculpatory, including in the sense of showing that K.S.'s conduct after
March 21, 2015 was unlike a person who was the victim of an invasion of privacy. These
multiple statements by this witness are key to the defense and have not been provided in any
detail. Therefore, full memoranda of what was said by K.S, at all interviews should be provided.

C. The Circuit Attorney's Missing Tape of K.S. Interview

Given the passage of time and inconsistencies between what K.S. says on different
occasions, it is essential that the Defendant have copies of all prior statements of witness K.S.
One of these prior statements was given to the Circuit Attorney months ago. On Friday, K.S.
testified that the Circuit Attorney and Mr. Tisaby had & video camera at this key interview. They
told K.S. and her attorney that the interview was being videotaped. The camera was set up by
Mr. Tisaby. As far as K.S. was aware, the interview was videotaped. This videotape is essential
to the defense of the case because it likely would confirm even more inconsistencies in the
evidence or corroborate important exculpatory details, Already the evidence contains different
statements by K.S. (a) to her husband on recordings; (b) to the Grand Jury; (c) what K.S. testified

in her deposition that she said to the House Committee; and (d) in her deposition. A videotape of
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an interview would be particularly powerful evidence for the Defendant. Its production is
essential,

Apparently, the Circuit Attorney claims that the videotape machine did not work. If
proper investigation technique was followed, the tape machine would have been checked before
the interview started, the tape would have been marked as involving an interview of K.S. on the
date at issue, and the tape would be preserved. Yet no tape has been provided. Ata minimum, a
written a report should exist that described the attempted taping and why it failed. No report has
been provided. Nor has any other explanation been given for the malfunction. This tape is
essential to the defense, both for the substance of what was said and to confirm what was told to
the prosecutors. Defendant believes that if the St. Louis Police Department — and not an
unlicensed private investigator — conducted this investigation this valvable evidence for the
defense would not have been lost or destroyed.

Background on Discovery Issues in this Case

Over a month ago, at the March 6, 2018 court hearing in which The Circuit Attorney
participated, the Circuit Attorney’s Office stated, “the State will absolutely turn over anything
that is Brady, whether or not it's in a report, and it will be put in writing and in a report.” 3-6-18
Transcript, p. 15. Similarly, the Circuit Attorney’s Office had promised “anything potentially
exculpatory ... we will absolutely tum it over within 48 hours of getting it.” 3-6-18 Transcript, p.
15-16. '

The Court is aware of some of the difficulties defense counsel has had trying to obtain
accurate information as to what K.S. has said in prior statements made to the Circuit Attorney.
The claim that there are no notes from the January 29, 2018, interview of K.S. conducted by Mr.

Tisaby and The Circuit Attorney is well documented in defense counsel's motion to compel a
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second deposition of Mr. Tisaby. After Mr. Tisaby had been grilled as to how he could have
conducted a two-hour interview without taking a single note, suddenly the following day the
Circuit Attorney produced notes she had from that interview. Notations related to what K.S. said
regarding the events of March 21 and the days following are minimal to say the least.
Additionally, K.S. had been interviewed on January 24, 2018. However, no one other than The
Circuit Attorney participated in that interview. While defense counsel has notes of The Circuit
Attorney from that interview, as discussed below, the exculpatory facts were not referenced
within the notes. Consequently, until K.S.'s deposition last Friday, significant exculpatory
information had not previously been revealed, as promised to the Court and to defense counsel.

Time and effort was wasted in the deposition of K.S. obtaining information that the
Circuit Attorney chose not to disclose to defense counsel or the grand jury before the deposition.
Defense counsel raised the concems about not getting exculpatory information more than a
month ago. The Circuit Attomey’s Office promised “anything potentially exculpatory” would be
turned over. The failure to do so in such an important matter is inexcusable. Moreover, what
other exculpatory information may also be available is still unknown. K.S. was interviewed once
by only The Circuit Attorney, yet her notes have no exculpatory information included. The
second interview was videotaped, but the Circuit Attorney’s Office claims the equipment did not
work. The Circuit Attorney’s Office has acknowledged that exculpatory information must be
turned over whether written into a report or not, However, that did not happen in this case. With
The Circuit Attorney sitting there in the courtroom, her office made clear they knew the rules:

"[W]e will make sure if there are any things that are not contained
in the report, and I candidly can't imagine anything that would fall

into that that hasn't been turned over, but should there be anything,
it's turned over in advance of the deposition.”
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3-6-18 Transcript, p. 17. When this statement was made, the Circuit Attorney knew at least
some of the information set out above.
Request for Relief

Defendant requests that the Court order the Circuit Attomey to produce all exculpatory
information in its possession, including any further statements by K.S. that her testimony may be
based on “dreams"” or "visions"; any further statements by K.S. that negate or call into question
the essential elements of the case; and further statements that suggest that K.S. did not view
herself as being a victim of an invasion of privacy after March of 2015, and the video tape and
machine at issue (or any report related thereto). This request extends to all exculpatory
information, whether documented in writing or retained only orally.
Dated: April 8,2018 Respectfully submitted,

Dowb BENNETT LLP

By: /s/James G, Martin __
James G, Martin, #33586
James F. Bennett, #46826
Edward L. Dowd, #28785
Michelle Nasser, #68952

7733 Forsyth Blvd., Suite 1900
St. Louis, MO 63105

Phone: (314) 889-7300

Fax: (314) 863-2111
jmartin@dowdbennett.com
joennett@dowdbennett.com
edowd@dowdbennett.com
mnasser@dowdbennett.com

John F. Garvey, #35879
Carey Danis & Lowe
8235 Forsyth, Suite 1100
St. Louis, MO 63105
Phone: (314) 725-7700
Fax: (314) 678-3401
Jjgarvey@careydanis.com
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N. Scott Rosenblum, #33390
Rosenblum Schwartz & Fry
120 S. Central Ave., Suite 130
Clayton, MO 63105

Phone: (314) 862-4332

nkettler@rsflawfirm.com

Attorneys for Defendant
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
{

I hereby certify that the t:'oregoing was filed electronically with the Clerk of the Court to

be served by operation of the Court's electronic filing system upon the City of St. Louis Circuit

Attorney’s Office this 8th day of April 2018.

{s/ _James G. Martin
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Jay Barnes

From: Scott Simpson <scott@knightsimpson.com>
. goent: Monday, April 09, 2018 8:46 PM
o Jay Barnes
Subject: RE: Subpoena for Testimony March 12
Attachments: Statement - Greitens 4-8-18.pdf
Mr. Barnes,

I have read the motion that Gov. Greitens team filed in response to her deposition testimony. Please be advised, the
motion mischaracterizes my client’s testimony. | am happy to provide any supplemental information your committee
might find helpful.

| have attached statement calling for the release of my client’s complete deposition transcript.

Thank you,
Scott Simpson

Scott Simpson

_Attorney at Law
Knight & Simpson
423 Jackson Street
Saint Charles, MO 63301
Phone: 636-947-7412
Fax: 636-947-7505
Email: scott@knightsimpson.com
www.Knightsimpson.com

This transmission and any attached files are privileged, confidential or otherwise the exclusive property
of the intended recipient or Knight & Simpson. If you are not the intended recipient, any diselosure,
copying, distribution or usc of any of the information contained in or attached to this transmission is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this transmission in error, please contact us immediately by e-
mail (scott@knightsimpson.com) or telephone (636-947-7412 and promptly destroy the original
transmission and its attachments. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do
ot relate to the official business of Knight & Simpson shall be understood as neither given nor endorsed
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Joshua G. Knight

, Knighf &" Simpson Scott Simpson

Attorneys at Law
>’ Attorneys atLaw <=  Kathryn FCRyan (
Paralegal
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
April 9, 2018

Media Contact: Scott Simpson (636) 947-7412
Missouri Gov. Greitens

Navy Seals have a code that directs its members to take responsibility for their actions
and the actions of their teammates. With that code in mind, it is time for Gov. Eric Greitens to
take responsibility for his actions as well as the actions of his team which is made up of the best
lawyers other people’s money can buy. Gov. Greitens has admitted to my client, on multiple
occasions that he took her photograph, without her consent, and threatened to release it if she
ever told anyone about their relationship. Instead of taking responsibility for his actions, Gov.
Greitens has decided to let his team attack my client by mischaracterizing her deposition
testimony.

In an effort to preserve her privacy and the privacy of her children, my client has refused
to comment on this case and her silence has allowed a number of false and misleading statements
to go unanswered. However, the most recent attack on my client’s credibility cannot be ignored;
it is time to set the record straight. We will support a motion to release the complete transcript of
my client’s deposition, so long as her name and other identifying information is redacted. Gov. (‘\
Greitens needs to take responsibility for his actions and be honest about the fact that he took my
client’s photograph without her consent.

The governor can continue to try this case in the media but at his trial the facts will speak

for themselves. My client has taken responsibility for her actions and it is time Gov. Greitens
accepts responsibility for his.

B

423 Jackson Street www.knightsimpson.com Phone: 636-947-7412
Saint Charles, MO 63301 Fax: 636-947-7505



